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THE VARIED HISTORY OF THE CIFSS OFFICE 

 
The current CIFSS office in Los Alamitos is an excellent facility to support 

the needs of over 560 high schools competing in interscholastic sports…it 

has not always been that way. When the CIFSS was founded in 1913, there 

was no office and most of the business was done by individual 

administrators in their home schools or by managers assigned to conduct 

specific contests. Early quarters included dingy basements, surplus school 

rooms and even a home. Seth Van Patten, the first CIFSS secretary and first 

commissioner, did most of his work at home or at individual school sites. 

The CIFSS first “official meeting” after the founding (which was on March 

29, 1913, at the Y.M.C.A. Field) was May 15, 1913, on the campus of Los 

Angeles High School which served as the primary meeting place of the 

CIFSS Council for many years. The meetings were usually held in the drama 

room or room #247. The other major meeting place of the CIFSS was the 

downtown Los Angeles YMCA room # 508. 
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 The fledgling organization also met at the University Club in Los Angeles, 

Los Angeles Poly High School, Long Beach High School, Y.C.M.A. 

Clubhouse in Boyle Heights, Security Building, Athletic Club of Los 

Angeles, Occidental College, Pomona College, Manual Arts High School, 



Van Patten’s residence, U.S.C., the Bible Institute and even the “Cave 

Room” of the Maryland Hotel in Pasadena, In addition, the Council met at 

the sites of the sporting events.  

The CIFSS continued to grow and was able to establish themselves even in 

the face of the daunting depression. Finally, in May of 1928, the CIFSS 

Council passed a motion which stated, “...power to take final action in 

regards to a part-time secretary with a maximum budget for salary of himself 

and secretary at $1,500.” At the September 29, 1928 meeting a motion was 

passed which stated, “…that Mr. Oliver be authorized to make all the 

necessary purchase of furniture and equipment for the secretary’s (Van 

Patten) office.” The CIFSS Council held their December 20, 1928 meeting 

on the third floor of the auditorium at Central Junior High School…the 

first official home of the CIFSS. The May 17, 1930 Council minutes 

defined the operational status of the office as: 

 Sum of $200 to be spent to better the appearance of the office and 

equipment. 

 Office hours of the Commissioner of Athletics are extended to cover 

the hours of 1 p.m. to 5 p.m. on school days. 

 The salary of the Commissioner to be $2,000 per year payable 

monthly. 

 That Seth F. Van Patten be the Commissioner. 

 Office clerk help from the junior high school. 

 
The first stationary appears on the October 4, 1930 bulletin. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
Central Junior High School 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
The next CIFSS home was Belmont High School when a move was made in 

May of 1936. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seth Van Patten returned to one of his previous school assignments as the 

office moved to South Pasadena High School in September, 1937. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



In February of 1942, the CIFSS office moved to the Oneonta School just 

down the street from South Pasadena High School when safety concerns 

were voiced over earthquake preparedness. Oneonta School at that time was 

an elementary school on Fremont Avenue. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 The next home was a second floor apartment in a dwelling house on Fair 

Oaks in South Pasadena in September 1949, as Mr. Van Patten sought to 

find a better arrangement and a more permanent home. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 On November 23, 1949, the CIFSS moved to the Helms Hall with the help 

of Mr. Paul H. Helms. Mr. Helms loved sports and was in the process of 

establishing the Helms Athletic Foundation which was also housed in the 

Helms Hall. It was stated in the December, 1949, Bulletin that, “…we have 

not asked why Mr. Helms invited the CIFSS to occupy office space in this 

fine building…we think he knows this will all lead to better, finer, and 

cleaner athletics among our school boys.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 



With the increase of office staff and the need for space at the Helms Athletic 

Foundation, it was felt that after ten years it would be nice if the CIFSS 

could find their own permanent home. On March 28, 1959, the CIFSSS 

moved to the “new eye-catching one story structure, built exclusively for the 

CIFSS.” This building was located near Culver City. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In 1965, there was again a need to increase office space and land was leased 

from the Excelsior School District on the campus of Gahr High School. The 

cost to build the new office building was $86,960. This office was later 

remodeled in 1987 to create more room for meetings and staff. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As the CIFSS entered a new century more schools continued to join and the 

Gahr facility was overcrowded and the lease was coming due. A search team 

under the direction of Bill Clark, former Assistant Commissioner, began a 

through search for a new home. Finally, after some opposition in the Los 

Alamitos community, a former United States Post Office building was 

purchased on Pine Street and a move to the refurbished building took place 

on October 16, 2002. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

CIF SOUTHERN SECTION OFFICE 

 

September 29, 1928 to May, 1936 

(7 ½ years) 
Central Junior High School 

451 North Hill Street 

Los Angeles, California 

Room #151 

Phone MUtual 7536 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  

CIF SOUTHERN SECTION OFFICE 

 

May29, 1936 to September 1937 

(1 ½ years) 
Belmont High School 

1575 West Second Street 

Los Angeles, California 

Phone MUtual 7586 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

C IF SOUTHERN SECTION OFFICE 

 

September 27, 1937 to February, 1942 

(4 ½ years) 
South Pasadena High School 

1401 Fremont Avenue 

South Pasadena, California 

Phone BLanchard 7-1707 – PYramid 1-707 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

CIF SOUTHERN SECTION OFFICE 

 

February, 1942 to September 1949 

(7 ½ years) 
The Oneonta School 

1955 Fremont Avenue 

South Pasadena, California 

Phone Cleveland 6-2336 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

CIF SOUTHERN SECTION OFFICE 

 

September, 1949 to November 23, 1949 

(2 months) 
An Apartment 

1015 Fair Oaks Avenue 

South Pasadena, California 

Phone SYcamore 9-6980 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Home of Seth Van Patten in Alhambra when he passed away August 11, 

1952.  A lot of CIF-SS work was done here. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

CIF SOUTHERN SECTION OFFICE 

 

November 23, 1949 to March 28, 1959 

(9 ½ years) 
Helms Hall 

8760 Venice Boulevard 

Los Angeles 34, California 

Phone Texas 0-3161 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Note the trophy in the right corner of the photo. It is the Paul H. Helms 

Trophy that was thrown in a trash can when the CIF-SS changed offices. 

Bruce McIntosh rescued it, sans the top trophy, and it now sits in the CIF-SS 

History corner. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

CIF SOUTHERN SECTION OFFICE 

 

March 28, 1959 to November, 1965 

(6 ½ years) 
Culver City Office 

5443 W. Washington Boulevard 

Los Angeles 16, California 

Phone Webster 1-1423 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

CIF SOUTHERN SECTION OFFICE 

 

November 1965 to October 16, 2002 
(37 years) 

Cerritos Office 
11011 Artesia Boulevard 

Artesia, California 90701 

(213) 860-2414 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CIF SOUTHERN SECTION OFFICE 



 

October 16, 2002 to Present 

 
Los Alamitos Office 

10932 Pine Street 

Los Alamitos, California 90720 

(562) 493-9500 

FAX: (562) 493-6266 

Web Site: www.cifss.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.cifss.org/


BRIEF HISTORY OF THE PINE STREET CIF-SS OFFICE 

 

The ground upon which the current CIF-SS office sits was once inhabited by 

the Puvu Indians a branch of the Shoshones. Under Spanish rule the Nieto 

Land Grant covered the area which was divided into smaller ranchos 

including the Los Alamitos (Little Cottonwoods) Rancho. John Bixby leased 

much of the land for raising grain and sheep. The Township of Los Alamitos 

begun around 1880 with the first school was built at what are now Katella 

and Los Alamitos Boulevards. A large sugar beet refinery was built where 

Los Alamitos High School currently is located. Los Alamitos became a 

chartered city on March 1, 1960.  

 

 1897 Map of Los Alamitos                        Sugar Beet Refinery looking 

            North on Main Street (Reagan) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Early maps indicate the area of the current office was in the main part of Los 

Alamitos and was laid out for business lots. The first church in Los 

Alamitos, the Congregational Missionary Society, was a non-denominational 

Church built in 1897 on the corner of Pine and Church (Katella). There was 

a rectory behind the church and a garden to grow vegetables where the CIF-

SS office is now located. There was also a chicken coop on the site prior to 

the construction of a United States Post Office in 1962.  A large trailer left 

over from the 1984 Olympics was placed in the front of the post office to 

handle the walk-up customers. The major part of the building was for the 

carriers and collection of mail. Individual post boxes were located across the 

street. The Post office closed in 1995 when the lease ran out. The old post 

office was subject to graffiti and vandalism. The city bought the building 

and surrounding property in 1997 for $515,000 and began to look for a 

buyer. In late 1998, the city leased the building to the Book Connection, a 

specialty book store selling old and used books. The lease was for three 

years at $2,000 a month. The leasers stated they put close to $100,000 into 



the improvement of the old run down post office building. In 1999, they 

opened the Awakenings Coffee & Tea House in the main building and an 

outdoor eating area. The main coffee maker was the son of the owner who 

was referred to “Mocha Maestro.” 

The lease on the Gahr High School campus CIF-SS building, which had 

been arranged for 50 years at around $300 a month, was coming to a close. 

The school district needed the land to build a performing arts center and was 

going to raise the rent to $2,000 a month. In addition, the CIF-SS was 

growing and thinking about adding onto the current office with a 3,000’ two 

story extension. Retired Assistant Commissioner Bill Clark was hired to 

begin a search for a new location. Several sites were looked at in Long 

Beach, but it was felt the Los Alamitos site was close the freeway system 

and was centrally located for all the member schools of the CIF-SS. 

Negotiations for the property began with the City of Los Alamitos. Some of 

the community objected to CIF-SS buying the property as it would not 

increase the tax base. In addition, many old timers still felt that the area, 

known as the Plaza area, could become the main center for the City of Los 

Alamitos which didn’t have a specific “downtown area.” There was also a 

problem with the negotiations with violations of the Brown Act (open 

meetings). Finally, the land and buildings (15,000 square feet) were 

purchased for $747,569.23 in 2002. Immediate building improvements (the 

air conditioning did not work and the City covered those costs including 

removal of asbestos and reconfiguring the building cost $443,132 and new 

fixtures, etc., another $112,260. The office opened on October 16, 2002. 

 

BOOK CONNECTION & AWAKENINGS COFFEE HOUSE 1999 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Photo of the Post Office when it opened in late 1962 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Church located on the current corner of Pine and Los Alamitos Boulevard 

founded in 1897. The rectory and garden behind the church sat on the 

current property of the CIF-SS. 
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